
- over - 

AGENDA FOR 

BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

May 24, 2016 
 

CALENDAR 
 

May 24 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, Riverview Elementary School 

May 24 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, Riverview Elementary School 

May 24 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, Riverview Elementary School 
Jun 14 5:30 p.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jun 14 
Immediately 

following 
Executive Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

Jun 14 7:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 
Jun 21 7:00 a.m. Public Work Session, J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

 

******************* 
A. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE 

 
B. INVITATION TO SPEAK PROTOCOL 

 
C. SUPERINTENDENT’S STUDENT ADVISORY COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVES 

 

D. Gift Acceptance - The administration recommends Board acceptance with 
appreciation recent donations made to the Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

E. BUILDING REPORT 
Building Energy Report – Ted Foland 

Barb Cripe - Principal 

 
F. MINUTES - 

May 10, 2016 – Public Work Session 

May 10, 2016 – Regular Board Meeting 
May 17, 2016 – Public Work Session 

 

G. TREASURER'S REPORT 
 

 Consideration of Claims 

 
 Financial Report – January 1, 2016 – April 30, 2016 

 

 Fund Loans – The Business Office reports on fund loans made at the end of 
April 2016. 
 



BOARD AGENDA May 24, 2016 
 
 

2 
   

 Budget Timeline – A timeline for the 2017 Budget is provided for Board review. 
 

 Meal Prices – The administration recommends Board approval of meal prices for 
the 2016-2017 school year. 
 

 Fundraisers - The Business Office recommends Board approval of proposed 
school fundraisers in accordance with Board Policy. 
 

H. NEW BUSINESS 
 

 Student Services – Beardsley/Samaritan Center 

 
 Instructional Leadership – Library to Learning Commons 

 

 Elkhart Public Library Board Appointment 
 

 Board Policy DP – Materiality and Process for Reporting Material Items - The 

administration presents proposed new Board Policy DP – Materiality and Process 
for Reporting Material Items, for initial consideration. 
 

 Grant Approval – The administration recommends approval for the submission 
of a grant application to Scholastic Reading Club for a 2016 Patterson 

Partnership grant from Pierre Moran Middle School. 
 

 Grant Confirmation – The administration seeks Board confirmation of a grant 

submitted to the Indiana Department of Homeland Security for a Secured 
School Safety Grant FY 2017 from ECS. 
 

 Overnight Trip Requests - The administration seeks Board approval of overnight 
trip requests. 
 

I. PERSONNEL 
 

 Conference Leaves - It is recommended the Board grant conference leave 

requests in accordance with Board Policy to staff members as recommended by 
the administration. 
 

 Certified and Classified Staff - See the report and recommendations of the 
administration. 
 

J. INFORMATION AND PROPOSALS 
 

 From Audience 

 
 From Superintendent and Staff 

 

 From Board 
 

K. ADJOURNMENT 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  5/13/16 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 
  Board of School Trustees 

FROM:   Jill Balcom 

RE:  Donation Approval 

 

Bristol Elementary has received a donation from Robert Weed Plywood in the amount of 

$971.59.  The monies will be used for our PBIS student incentives and for additional student 

needs (shoes, socks, etc.). 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 Robert Weed Plywood 

705 Maple Street 

 Bristol, IN  46507 











 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE:  May 20, 2016 

TO:  Dr. Rob Haworth 

  Board of School Trustees 

RE:  Donation Approval 

 

We are in receipt of an extracurricular donation in the amount of $18,820.00 to the Memorial Athletic 

Department.  This donation will be given to the Athletic Department as displayed in the chart below.  

Monies will go towards the purchase of various items in each sport program as requested by the 

coaches and Athletic Department. 

I am requesting approval from the Board of School Trustees to accept this donation and that an 

appropriate letter of acknowledgement and appreciation is sent to: 

 

Elkhart Memorial High School Athletic Booster Club 

C/O Mike Lapczynski, EMHS ABC Treasurer 

30580 Quail Pointe Dr. 

Granger, IN 46530 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 





















MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 
 

May 10, 2016 
 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – 5:30 p.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Jean Creasbaum Doug Hasler 
 Tony England Rob Haworth 
 Tony Gianesi Doug Thorne 
 Shawn Hannon Dee Wappes 
  Bob Woods 
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board heard a presentation from Shawn Hannon, Dee Wappes and Jean 
Creasbaum on the preliminary IREAD data, waivers, and remediation offered 

prior to the next testing period; and agenda items for the regular Board 

meeting. 

 

Topics 

Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 6:05 p.m. 

 

Adjournment 

 
APPROVED: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 

 

Signatures 

 



 
MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 
Elkhart Community Schools 

Elkhart, Indiana 

May 10, 2016 
 

J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – at 
7:00 p.m. 
 

Place/Time 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 

Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
  Douglas K. Weaver 

   
 

Roll Call 

President Glenn Duncan called the regular meeting of the Board of 
School Trustees to order.  The pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 

Call to 
Order 

Mr. Duncan discussed the invitation to speak protocol. 
 

Protocol  

Superintendent’s Student Advisory Council (SSAC) representatives 

introduced themselves.  Central High School (CHS) was represented by 
Noah Yoder, a junior involved in the National Honor Society as co-
president, student council as vice-president, and band.  He reported on 

ISTEP testing, sports including Emily Decker’s success in the shot put, 
and the upcoming NIC girls/boys track meet.  Mr. Yoder announced 
Central met their goals for Project Y by completing over 300 hours of 

tutoring at Beardsley to help prepare third grade students for the IREAD 
testing, meeting the $10,000.00 goal for scholarship, and the success of 
the unified track meet.  Stephen Tefft, a senior, represented Memorial 

High School (MHS).  Mr. Tefft is president of SSAC, in the National 
Honor Society, student council, and captain of the tennis team.  He 
thanked the staff at Woodland for helping them reach and exceed their 

goal of $10,000.00 and scholarship applications will be reviewed next 
week.  Mr. Tefft reported on the upcoming Memorial vs. Central golf 
match, ECA testing, and a car being donated from Lochmandy Motors 

for the perfect attendance drawing. 
 

SSAC 

Representatives 

By unanimous action, the Board accepted with appreciation the following 

donations made to Elkhart Community Schools (ECS):  $5,000.00 from 
the Blazer Club and $500.00 from Heart City Automotive Group to 
Central’s athletic department; and $500.00 from Matthew and Amanda 

Menchinger for teachers to obtain miscellaneous school supplies at Mary 
Beck Elementary. 

 
 
 

Gift Acceptance 

 



2 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following minutes:  
April 26, 2016 - Regular Board Meeting 

April 26, 2016 - Public Work Session 
 

Approval of 
Minutes 

By unanimous action, the Board approved payment of claims totaling 

$6,770,525.97 as shown on the May 10, 2016, claims listing.  (Codified 
File 1516-125) 
 

Payment of 

Claims  

By unanimous action, the Board adopted a resolution authorizing the 
use of the design-build process for construction of improvements at 
Beardsley.  In response to Board request, Doug Hasler, executive 

director of support services, explained the design-build process for those 
in attendance.  (Codified File 1516-126) 
 

Resolution 

By unanimous action, the Board approved extra-curricular purchases for 
MHS orchestra to purchase two Apple televisions and one iPad Pro for 
$897.00; and MHS orchestra to purchase food in Chicago for $1,154.38. 

 

Extra Curricular 
Purchases 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed school fundraisers 
in accordance with Board policy.  The funds raised through the listed 

activities are deposited into each school’s extra-curricular fund. (Codified 
File 1516-127) 

 

Fundraiser 
Approval 

By unanimous action, the Board untabled and approved a Memorandum 
of Understanding (MOU) with Vincennes University regarding early 

college opportunities for Elkhart Area Career Center (EACC) students.  
The MOU was revised per recommendations at the Board’s April 24th 
meeting. (Codified File 1516-128) 

 

Memorandum 
of 

Understanding 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions to Board 
Policy IF – Curriculum Development, as initially presented at the Board’s 

April 24th meeting. 
 

Board Policy IF 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions to Board 

Policy IG – Instructional Program Development, as initially presented at 
the Board’s April 24th meeting. 
 

Board Policy IG 

The Board accepted proposed revisions to Administrative Regulation IG-
(1) – Instructional Cycle, as initially presented at the Board’s April 24th 
meeting.   

 

Administrative 
Regulation IG-(1) 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions to Board 
Policy IGBB – Programs for High Ability Students, as initially presented 

at the Board’s April 24th meeting.   
 

Board Policy 
IGBB 

The Board accepted proposed revisions to Administrative Regulation 

IGBB – Procedures for Identifying and Serving High Ability Students.  
Per request of the Board at the April 24th meeting, further clarification 
was added to the Regulation. 

 

Administrative 

Regulation 
IGBB 



3 
 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions and 
waived second reading of Board Policy GDBA-1 – Food Service 

Employees’ Compensation Plan 
 

Board Policy 
GDBA-1 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions and 

waived second reading of Board Policy GDBA-10 – Employees in 
Miscellaneous Positions Compensation Plan. 
 

Board Policy 

GDBA-10 

By unanimous action, the Board approved proposed revisions and 
waived second reading of Board Policy GDBA-12 – Employees in 
Technology Services Positions Compensation Plan. 

 

Board Policy 
GDBA-12 

By unanimous action, the Board confirmed the submission of a grant 
application to the Indiana Department of Criminal Justice for a Safe 

Haven grant for Bullying Prevention from ECS. (Codified File 1516-129)  

 

Grant Approval 

By unanimous action, the Board confirmed the submission of a grant 

application submitted to the Community Foundation of Elkhart County 
for a Project Y grant from ECS.  (Codified File 1516-129) 
 

Grant 

Confirmation 

By unanimous action, the Board approved overnight trip requests for 
Memorial’s marching band to travel to Speedway, IN on May 27 thru 

May 29 for Indy 500 Parade performance; and for 7th and 8th grade 
social studies students from West Side Middle School to travel to 
Washington, DC during Fall Break of 2016 to learn, explore and discover 

the nation’s capitol. 
 

Overnight Trip 
Requests 

By unanimous action, the Board approved conference leave requests in 

accordance with Board policy for staff members as recommended by the 
administration on the May 10, 2016 listing and addendum. (Codified File 

1516-130) 
 

Conference 

Leaves 

By unanimous action, the Board approved the following personnel 

recommendations of the administration: 

Personnel 

Report 

Employment of the following seven (7) certified staff members for 
the 2016-2017 school year:  

Mary Boehman - world language at Memorial 
Elizabeth Franks-North - language arts at West Side 
Hillary Harder - music at Roosevelt 

Joshua Hren - music at Memorial 
Rebecca Kmitta - psychologist, location to be determined 
Wesley Molyneaux - coordinator of technology integration 

Laura Stauffer – American Sign Language at Central/Memorial 
 

Certified 
Employment 

 

Resignation of certified staff member Nia Mathews, Grade 1 at 

Monger, effective 6/1/16. 

 

Certified 

Resignation 
 

Retirement of certified staff member Rita Raval, world languages at 
Memorial, at the end of the 2015-16 school year, with 40 years of 
service. 

Certified 
Retirement 



4 
 

Regular employment of the following seven (7) classified 
employees, who have successfully completed their probationary 

periods, on dates indicated: 
Mariana Aguilar - food service at Beck/Monger, 5/2/16 
Domenick Butler - custodian at Roosevelt, 5/9/16 

Derrick Johnson II - paraprofessional at Beardsley, 5/2/16 
Scott Laird - support tech I at ESC, 5/10/16 
Tyresha Peoples - food service at Memorial, 5/10/16 

Byron Swartzentruber - paraprofessional at Memorial,  
  5/10/16 
Michelle VanArsdale - food service at Pierre Moran, 5/9/16 

 

Classified  
Employment 

Retirement of the following three (3) classified employees on dates 
indicated, with years of service in parenthesis: 

Julie Hinzmann, social worker at Daly, 6/3/16 (27) 
Peggy North, bus helper at Transportation, 6/1/16 (14) 
Julie Woodiwiss, secretary at Woodland, 6/9/16 (17) 

 

Classified 
Retirement 

Resignation of the following six (6) classified employees effective 
on dates indicated:  

Joseph Fox III - paraprofessional at Tipton, 4/1/16 
Lawrence Friesner - bus driver at Transportation, 4/27/16 

Jalisa Gates - bus helper at Transportation, 4/22/16 
Shannon Link - secretary at Daly, 6/1/16 
Tonya Miles - food service at Beardsley, 5/9/16 

Shirley Robinson - bus helper at Transportation, 6/1/16 
 

Classified 
Resignations 

 

Termination of classified employee Sandra Heckathorn, bus driver 

at Transportation, in accordance with Board Policy GBEB, Section 
II (B). 
 

Classified 

Termination 
 

Administrative appointments of Jill Balcom, principal at Bristol 
and Rhiannon Harrison, assistant principal at Central. 
 

Administrative 
Appointments 
 

An agreement regarding retirement eligibility. Agreement 

  



5 
 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 7:40 p.m. 
 

Adjournment 

APPROVED: 
  ____________________________________ 
  Glenn L. Duncan, President 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
 

____________________________________ 
  Karen S. Carter, Secretary 
 

 
____________________________________ 

  Carolyn R. Morris, Member 

 
 

____________________________________ 

  Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 

 
  _____________________  ______________ 
  Jeri E. Stahr, Member 

 
 
  ____________________________________ 

  Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

Signatures 

 



MINUTES OF THE 
PUBLIC WORK SESSION 

OF THE 
BOARD OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 

 

Elkhart Community Schools 
Elkhart, Indiana 

 
May 17, 2016 

 
J. C. Rice Educational Services Center, 2720 California Rd, Elkhart – at 7:00 a.m. 
 

Time/Place 

Board Members Glenn L. Duncan Carolyn R. Morris 
Present: Susan C. Daiber Dorisanne H. Nielsen 
 Karen S. Carter Jeri E. Stahr 
   
Absent  Douglas K. Weaver 
   
ECS Personnel Present: Doug Thorne  
   
   

 

Roll Call 

The Board met to review proposed bylaws and revisions to the policies 

adopted for Elkhart Community Schools. 
 

Topics 
Discussed 

The meeting adjourned at approximately 8:50 a.m. Adjournment 

 

APPROVED: 
 
______________________________ 
Glenn L. Duncan, President 
 
______________________________ 
Susan C. Daiber, Vice President 
 
______________________________ 
Karen S. Carter, Secretary 

 
 
_______________________________ 
Carolyn R. Morris, Member 
 
_______________________________ 
Dorisanne H. Nielsen, Member 
 
_______________________________ 
Jeri E. Stahr, Member 
 
_______________________________ 
Douglas K. Weaver, Member 

 

 
 
Signatures 

 







ELKHART COMMUNITY SCHOOLS 
 

 2017 

 BUDGET TIMELINE 

Tentative 

 

 

June 28, 2016 Budget Draft Review (Debt Service Fund, Pension Debt Service Fund, 

Referendum Debt Service Fund, Capital Projects Fund, Transportation 

Operating Fund, Bus Replacement Fund, Referendum Operating Fund 

and proposed plans for Capital Projects and Bus Replacement) @ 7:00 

a.m. Work Session 

 

July 26, 2016 Budget Draft Review (General Fund and updates for other funds) @ 7:00 

a.m. Work Session 

 

August 22, 2016 Provide Notice of Public Hearing for proposed Capital Projects Plan and 

Bus Replacement Plan to Newspapers 

 

August 22, 2016 Submit Budget Notice to Taxpayers through Gateway (DLGF) System 

(September 13
th
 is the last day to submit such notice) 

 

August 23, 2016 Present 2016 Budget, Bus Replacement Plan, CPF Plan 

 Forms 1 - 5 to Board 

 Approval from Board to Advertise 2016 Budget, Bus Replacement 

 Plan, CPF Plan 

 Approval to Hold Public Hearing on Budget, Bus Replacement 

 Plan, CPF Plan 

 

August 26, 2016 Notice of Public Hearing (of proposed Capital Projects Plan and Bus 

Replacement Plan) (Must be at least 10 days before the Public Hearing) 

 

September 13, 2016 Public Hearing – Budget, Bus Replacement Plan, CPF Plan (Last day for 

 public hearing on budget October 22
nd

) 

 

September 27, 2016 Board Adoption (Last day for budget, CPF, and Bus Replacement 

Plan adoption, November 1
st
) 

     Resolution – Adopt 2016 Budget 

     Resolution – Adopt 2016 School Bus Replacement Plan 

     Resolution – Adopt 2016 CPF Plan 

 

September 30, 2016 Adopted, signed copies of Budget/Capital Projects Fund Plan to County 

Auditor: 

 2 sets, including 1 set Original Proofs of Publication 

 

September 26, 2016 Publish Notice of Adoption of CPF Plan 

 

October 7, 2016 Obtain County Auditor Certificate of  

 No Remonstrances Concerning CPF Plan 

































 

INTERNAL MEMO 

 
J.C. Rice Educational Services Center 

2720 California Road • Elkhart, IN 46514 

 

 

          REVISED 

To:    Dr. Robert Haworth 

From:  Mr. Douglas Thorne 

Date:  May 24, 2016 

 

Personnel Recommendations 

 

CERTIFIED 

a. Agreement – We recommend the approval of a consent agreement regarding retirement and 

severance benefits. 

 

b. New Certified Employees – We recommend the approval of the following new certified staff for 

employment in the 2016-17 school year: 

Anna Calkins   TBD/Elementary 

Whitney Grandison  TBD/Elementary 

Charles Luke   TBD/Elementary 

Kaylee Miller   TBD/Elementary 

Cortney Quick   TBD/Elementary 

Scott Rutledge   Central/AF ROTC 

Tara Schuster   TBD/Elementary 

Shayla Yoder   TBD/Elementary 

 

c. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following employees: 

Daniel Rice  Sr. Director of Technology 27 Years of Service 

Garvin Roberson West Side/Social Studies 30 Years of Service 

 

d. Resignation – We report the resignation of the following employees: 

Jessica Caskey   Beck/Grade 5 

Began:  8/13/07   Resign:  6/1/16 

 

John DeShone   Central/Math 

Began:  8/13/14   Resign:  7/1/16 



 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 

 

Kelley Hunnings  Riverview/ENL 

Began:  10/27/14  Resign:  6/1/16 

 

Morgan Minisee-Lowe  Roosevelt/Grade 2 

Began:  8/13/14   Resign:  6/1/16 

 

Leslie Szilagyi   Central/Science 

Began :  8/14/06  Resign :  6/1/16 

 

 

e. Personal Leave – We recommend the approval of a personal leave for the following employee: 

 

Maribeth Harrell  Central/ENL 

Begin:  8/2/16   End:  12/16/16 

 

 

 

CLASSIFIED 

 

a. Retirement – We report the retirement of the following classified employees: 

 

Debra Black   Eastwood/Secretary 

Began: 1/4/93   Retire:   6/9/16 

    23 Years of Service 

  

Janet Burdick   West Side/Food Service 

Began:  11/1/00   Retire:   6/2/16 

    15 Years of Service 

 

Karla Copenhaver  ESC/Secretary 

Began:  10/14/91  Retire:   5/27/16 

    24 Years of Service     

 

 

b. Resignation – We report the resignation for the following classified employees: 

 

Valorie Books   Transportation/Bus Driver 

Began:   11/1/93  Resign:   5/19/16 

 

Anna Calkins   Hawthorne/Paraprofessional 

Began:  8/15/14   Resign:  6/1/16 

 

Kyseidra Jackson   Beardsley/Food Service 

Began:   8/13/15  Resign:   5/3/16  



 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 

   Megan Hovarter  Cleveland/Paraprofessional 

   Began:   9/20/04  Resign:   6/1/16 

       

 

 

c. New Employees – We recommend regular employment for the following classified employees: 

 

Marcelle Dunning  Eastwood/Paraprofessional 

Began:  3/21/16   PE:  5/23/16 

 

Henry Griffin Jr.  North Side/Food Service 

Began:  3/22/16   PE:  5/24/16 

 

Sylvia Miller   Beck/Food Service 

Began:  3/9/16   PE:  5/11/16 

 

Garrett Paulson  Building Services/Custodian 

Began:  3/22/16   PE:  5/17/16 

 

Tamara Robison  Beck/Paraprofessional 

Began:  3/21/16   PE:  5/23/16 

 

Danielle Schroeder  Cleveland/Paraprofessional 

Began:  3/14/16   PE:  5/16/16 

 

Lisa Tyson   Woodland/Memorial/Food Service 

Began:  3/9/16   PE:  5/11/16 

 

 

 

d. Medical Leave – We recommend  a  medical leave for the following classified employee: 

                                                                                                                                                                                        

Laterica Hubbard  Beck/Food Service 

Begin: 5/12/16   End:  6/1/16 

 

 

 

e. Termination – We recommend the termination of the following classified employee: 

 

Nicole House   West Side/Food Service 

Began:  9/11/15   Terminated:  5/24/16 

    Board Policy GDPD 1 a, c, g 

 


	Agenda
	Gift Acceptance - Bristol
	Gift Acceptance - EACC
	Gift Acceptance - ECS
	Gift Acceptance - MHS
	Gift Acceptance - Student Services
	Building Report - Riverview
	Minutes - Work Session May 10 2016
	Minutes - Regular Meeting May 10 2016
	Minutes - Work Session May 17 2016
	Account Balances
	Fund Loans
	Budget Timeline
	Meal Prices
	Fundraisers
	Elkhart Public Library Appointment
	Board Policy DP
	Grant - Pierre Moran Media Center
	Grant - ECS Secured School Safety
	Overnight Trip Request
	Conference Leaves
	Conference Leaves - Perkins
	Personnel Report

